




ITEM I. B. 

























PROCLAMATION  
 

WHEREAS, on March 22, 1972, Richard Nixon signed into law a measure that amended the Older 
Americans Act of 1965 and established a national nutrition program for seniors 60 years and older; 
 
WHEREAS, the Meals on Wheels Association of America established the National March for Meals 
Campaign in March 2002 to recognize the historic month, the importance of Older Americans Act 
Nutrition Programs – both congregate and home-delivered - and raise awareness about the escalating 
problem of senior hunger in America; 
 
WHEREAS, the 2015 observance of the March for Meals Campaign provides an opportunity to support 
Meals on Wheels programs that deliver vital and critical services by donating, volunteering and raising 
awareness about senior hunger and isolation; 
 
WHEREAS, Older Americans Act Nutrition Programs – both congregate and home-delivered - in South 
Carolina have served our communities for more than 40 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, volunteer drivers for Meals on Wheels programs in South Carolina are the backbone of the 
program and they not only deliver nutritious meals to homebound seniors and individuals with 
disabilities, but also caring, concern and attention to their welfare; and  
 
WHEREAS, Meals on Wheels programs in South Carolina provide nutritious meals to seniors 
throughout the State and help them maintain their health and independence and avoid unnecessary 
hospitalizations and/or premature institutionalization; 
 
WHEREAS, Meals on Wheels programs in South Carolina provide a powerful socialization opportunity 
for millions of seniors to help combat loneliness and isolation;  
 
WHEREAS, Meals on Wheels programs in South Carolina deserve recognition for the contributions they 
have made and will continue to make to local communities, our State and our Nation; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Elise Partin, Mayor of Cayce, SC, do proclaim March 2015 as March for Meals 
Month. 
 
I urge every citizen to take time this month to honor our Meals on Wheels programs, the seniors they 
serve and the volunteers who care for them.  Our recognition of, and involvement in, the national 2015 
March for Meals campaign can enrich our entire community and help combat senior hunger and isolation 
in America.  
 
Dated this 3rd day of March 2015 
 
     ______________________________________ 
     Elise Partin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Mendy C. Corder, Municipal Clerk 

ITEM II. A. 



P R O C L A M A T I O N 
 
WHEREAS, multiple sclerosis (MS) is a neurological disease of the central nervous system, affecting 2.3 
Million people worldwide, and each hour someone is newly diagnosed; and   
 
WHEREAS, the National Multiple Sclerosis Society – Greater Carolinas Chapter reports that in our state more 
than 13,000 people are diagnosed with MS, and that the disease generally strikes people in the prime of life, 
between ages 20 through 50, and causes unpredictable effects in which the progression, severity and specific 
symptoms cannot be foreseen, and the cause and cure for this often debilitating disease remain unknown; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the National Multiple Sclerosis Society – Greater Carolinas Chapter is committed to a world free of 
MS, heightening public knowledge about and insight into the disease; and 
 
WHEREAS, since 1946 the National Multiple Sclerosis Society has been a driving force of MS research, 
relentlessly pursuing prevention, treatment and a cure and has invested more than  868 million dollars in 
groundbreaking research; and 
 
WHEREAS, funds raised through the National Multiple Sclerosis Society fuel the efforts of nearly 380 
research projects globally totaling 50.6 million dollars annually at the best medical centers, universities and 
other institutions throughout the United States and abroad. Because of this MS research has never been more 
hopeful than it is today; and 
 
WHEREAS, discovering the cause, finding a cure, and preventing future generations from being diagnosed 
with MS is an important task that all Americans and South Carolinians should support; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cayce, South Carolina recognizes the importance of finding the cause and cure of MS, a 
chronic and often devastating disease, and expresses its appreciation and admiration for the dedication that 
the National Multiple Sclerosis Society – Greater Carolinas Chapter has shown toward a future free of MS;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Elise Partin, Mayor of the City of Cayce, South Carolina, along with fellow members of 
the Cayce City Council, do hereby proclaim March 2-8, 2015 as MS Awareness Week, and do commend this 
observance to all of our citizens.  I encourage all South Carolinians to learn more about multiple sclerosis and 
what they can do to support individuals with MS and their families. 

 
In witness thereof, I have hereunto set my hand this 3rd day of March, 2015. 

       
___________________________________________ 

       Elise Partin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________  
Mendy C. Corder, Municipal Clerk 
 

ITEM II. B. 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Mayor and Council 
 
From:  Rebecca Vance, City Manager  

Shaun Greenwood, Asst. City Manager 
 
 Date:  February 27, 2015   
 

Subject: Approval of Ordinance 2015-03 amending the City of Cayce Zoning 
Ordinance to address the subdivision of property in “Group 
Developments.” 

________________________________________________________________  
  

ISSUE   
 
Council approval is needed for the First Reading of an Ordinance amending 
Article 7 (“Conditional Use and Special Exception Regulations”) of the Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Cayce to include regulations allowing for the subdivision 
of properties included in a “Group Development.” 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
 
In response to concerns from the developers, staff has been researching ways to 
deal with a new trend in commercial developments.  Historically, commercial 
properties that contain multiple buildings or multiple uses in one building (Group 
Developments) use a horizontal ownership structure.  Several developers have 
recently approached the City to request the subdivision of new or existing 
developments in to what would be considered a fee simple ownership.   What 
this means is that instead of one big piece of property, the development would be 
subdivided into multiple pieces. 
 
The existing Ordinance does not currently allow for the subdivision of property in 
the manner that most of the developers are requesting.  The setback, buffering 
and landscaping requirements make it impossible to include internal property 
lines. 
 
The proposed Ordinance will allow the Zoning Administrator to reduce the 
setback, buffering and landscape requirements to zero (0) where applicable to 
property lines that are internal to the Group Development.  The new Ordinance 
also includes requirements that agreements and/or contracts be in place to 
ensure the maintenance and common use of stormwater systems, landscaping, 
parking areas, buffer yards and signage plans.  Staff believes this language is 
necessary to ensure there are no issues with the property owners in the future. 

ITEM IV. A.  



The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on this matter at its regularly 
scheduled meeting on February 23, 2015.  No members of the public were 
present to speak in favor of or against the Ordinance.  The Planning Commission 
voted unanimously to recommend Council approve the Ordinance.     
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends Council approve First Reading of an Ordinance amending 
Article 7 (“Conditional Use and Special Exception Regulations”) of the Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Cayce to include regulations allowing for the subdivision 
of properties included in a “Group Development.” 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
     ) 
CITY OF CAYCE   ) 
      

ORDINANCE 2015-03 
Amending Article 7 (“Conditional 
Use and Special Exception 
Regulations”) of the Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Cayce  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
City to create a new Section 7.17 (“Group Developments”) of the Zoning Ordinance to 
include new regulations on the subdivision of properties included in a Group 
Development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to 
receive comments from the public; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on February 23, 2015, to review 
public comments and vote on recommending the text amendment and unanimously 
decided that they do recommend this text amendment, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that Article 7 (“Conditional Use and Special 
Exception Regulations”) of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Cayce is hereby 
amended to add a new Section 7.17 (“Group Developments”) to read as follows: 

 
Section 7.17 Group Developments 

Due to the unique design, features and ownership structure of “Group 
Developments,” the following design requirements may be utilized for all 
such projects: 

(1) A “Group Development” shall be defined as a single building or 
multiple buildings housing multiple uses that share a common 
parking area. 
 

(2) For the purposes of site plan approval, including stormwater, 
parking, landscaping and common area/open space requirements, 
all associated properties will be treated as a single development. 
 

(3)  When a  Group Development  is subdivided into multiple parcels, 
the following documents, in detail satisfactory to the Zoning 
Administrator, shall be required: 

 
a) A plan or agreement detailing how the shared parking will 

be maintained and preserved. 
b) A plan or agreement detailing how the landscaping for the 

development will be maintained. 

 1  



c)  A common signage plan detailing the allotted signage for 
each individual use (existing and future) and a plan or 
agreement detailing how common signage at entrances 
will be addressed. 

d) A plan or agreement detailing how the stormwater system 
will be maintained and preserved. 

e) A plan or agreement detailing how any common area/open 
space will be maintained and preserved. 
 

(4) The Zoning Administrator may approve a reduction to the setback 
and bufferyard requirements to zero (0) feet and eliminate 
landscaping requirements on all internal property lines in the 
development. 

 
 This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by 
Council. 
 
 
 DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2015. 

 
 
                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 
 

 2  



Table of Contents 
 
Article 1. ENACTMENT AND JURISDICTION 1-1 
 
Article 2. DEFINITIONS 2-1 
  
Article 3. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 3-1 

 
Section 3.1 Intent 3-1 
Section 3.2 Administrative Official 3-1 
Section 3.3 Planning Commission 3-1 
Section 3.4 Zoning Board of Appeals 3-1 
Section 3.5 Responsibilities of Administrative Official 3-1 
Section 3.6 Filing Applications 3-3 
Section 3.7 Certificates of Zoning Compliance 3-3                                          
Section 3.8 Repair Permits 3-5 
Section 3.9 Sign Permits 3-5 
Section 3.10 Certificate of Occupancy 3-6 
Section 3.11 Inspections for Compliance 3-6                                                           
Section 3.12 Expiration of Certificate of Zoning Compliance 3-6 
Section 3.13 Complaints Regarding Violations                                                  3-6 
Section 3.14 Penalties for Violations 3-7 
Section 3.15 Annexation 3-7 
Section 3.16  
  

Article 4. APPLICATIONS FOR CHANGE AND/OR RELIEF 4-1 
 

Section 4.1 Intent 4-1 
Section 4.2 Types of Applications 4-1 
Section 4.3 Eligible Applicants 4-1 
Section 4.4 Application Requirements 4-2 
Section 4.5 Administrative Procedures, Action                                                   4-3  
Section 4.6 Reconsideration of Denied Applications 4-7 
Section 4.7  
  

Article 5. GENERAL AND ANCILLARY REGULATIONS 5-1 
 

Section 5.1 Application of Regulations 5-1 
Section 5.2 Exceptions and Modifications                                                          5-1 
Section 5.3 Measurements 5-3 
Section 5.4 Number of Principal Buildings/Uses on a Lot 5-3 
Section 5.5 Visibility at Intersections 5-4 
Section 5.6 Accessory Buildings and Uses                                                        5-4 
Section 5.7 Access to Property 5-6 
Section 5.8 Conversion of Residential Property 5-6 
Section 5.9 Nonconformities 5-6 
Section 5.10 Vested Rights 5-8 
 



Article 6. DISTRICT REGULATIONS 6-1 
 

Section 6.1 Establishment of Districts 6-1 
Section 6.2 Purpose of Districts 6-1 
Section 6.3 Establishment of District Regulations 6-4 
Section 6.4 Application of District Regulations                                                    6-4 
Section 6.5 Schedule of Uses and Off-street parking Requirements 

for Residential Districts 6-6 
Section 6.6 Schedule of Uses and Off-Street Parking Requirements 

For Commercial Industrial and Development Districts 6-8 
Section 6.7 Schedule of Lot Area, Yard, Setback Height and 

Lot Coverage By District 6-18 
Section 6.8 PDD Planned Development District  6-19 
Section 6.9 FH Flood Hazard District 6-23 
Section 6.10 Design Overlay Districts 6-65 
Section 6.11 Development Agreement District (DAD) 6-66 

 
Article 7. CONDITIONAL USE REGULATIONS 7-1 
 

Section 7.1 Townhouses 7-2 
Section 7.2 Patio and Zero Lot Line Housing 7-2  
Section 7.3 Bed and Breakfast Inns 7-3 
Section 7.4 Accessory Apartment 7-3 
Section 7.5 Temporary Uses (Portable Buildings, Tents, etc.) 7-4 
Section 7.6 Manufactured Home Parks 7-5 
Section 7.7 Home Occupation 7-6 
Section 7.8 Communication Towers and Antennas 7-7 
Section 7.9 Refuse Systems 7-10 
Section 7.10 Sexually Oriented Businesses 7-12 
Section 7.11 Camps and Recreational Vehicle Parks 7-14 
Section 7.12 Open Storage 7-15 
Section 7.13 Apartments in C-3 District 7-15 
Section 7.14 Car Wash, Single Bay, Fully Automated 7-16 
Section 7.15 Large Scale Commercial Development (Big Box) 7-16 
Section 7.16 Special Exception General Criteria 7-18 
Section 7.17 Group Developments 7-18  
 

Article 8. ARTICLE 8- SIGN REGULATIONS 8-1 
                                                                            

Section 8.1 Purpose 8-1 
Section 8.2 Applicability and Conformance  8-1 
Section 8.3 Signs on Private Property  8-1 
Section 8.4 Common Signage Plan Required 8-1 
Section 8.5 Wall Signs 8-6 
Section 8.6 Temporary Signs 8-11 
Section 8.7 Prohibited Signs 8-14 
Section 8.8 Development Standards 8-14 
Section 8.9 Sign Maintenance 8-15 



Section 8.10 Signs in the Public Right of Way 8-15 
Section 8.11 Sign Measurement 8-16 
Section 8.12 Removal of Obsolete, Unsafe & Nonconforming Signs 8-18 

 
Article 9. ARTICLE 9-SUPPLEMENTAL OFF-STREET 

PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 9-1  
                                                               

Section 9.1 General Requirements 9-1 
Section 9.2 Land to Provide Parking 9-1 
Section 9.3 Design Standards 9-2 
Section 9.4 Maintenance 9-3 
Section 9.5 Parking Spaces for the Physically Handicapped 9-3 
Section 9.6 Mixed Uses 9-4 
Section 9.7 Off-Street Loading 9-4 
Section 9.8 Storage and Use of Campers or Recreational  

Vehicles in Residential Zones 9-5 
Section 9.9 Parking of Heavy Vehicles and Tractor Trailers - Res. 9-6 

 
Article 10. APPEARANCE, BUFFERING, SCREENING, LANDSCAPING,  

AND OPEN SPACE REGULATION 10-1 
 

Section 10.1 Bufferyards  10-1 
Section 10.2 Screening 10-6 
Section 10.3 Landscaping 10-7 
Section 10.4 Common Open Space 10-10 
Section 10.5 Tree Protection 10-12 

 
Article 11. ARTICLE 11- LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS 11-1 
 

  



ARTICLE 7 
CONDITIONAL USE & SPECIAL EXCEPTION REGULATIONS 

 
The regulations contained in this Article are intended to ameliorate the impact and 
improve the citing of uses, buildings, and projects whose characteristics could adversely 
affect surrounding property and environmental conditions. Toward this end, standards 
and criteria over and above those set forth elsewhere in this Ordinance are imposed 
herein on all conditional uses and special exceptions listed on Tables 1 and 2, and set 
out below. 
 
 

 
CONDITIONAL USES 

 
Section Reference 

 
Townhouse projects 

 
7.1 

 
Patio and zero lot line housing projects 

 
7.2 

 
Bed and Breakfast Inns 

 
7.3 

 
Accessory Apartment 

 
7.4 

 
Temporary Uses (portable buildings, tents, etc.) 

 
7.5 

 
Manufactured Home Parks 

 
7.6 

 
Home Occupation 

 
7.7 

 
Communication Towers & Antennas 

 
7.8 

 
Refuse Systems 

 
7.9 

 
Sexually Oriented Businesses 

 
7.10 

 
Camps & Recreational Vehicle Parks 

 
7.11 

 
Open Storage 

 
7.12 

 
Apartments in the C-3 District 

 
7.13 

 
Single Bay, Fully Automated Car Wash 

 
7.14 

 
Large Scale Commercial Development (Big Box) 

 
7.15 

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS  
Special Exception General Criteria 7.16 

Group Developments 7.17 
 
  



Section 7.17 Group Developments 
Due to the unique design, features and ownership structure of “Group Developments,” the 
following design requirements may be utilized for all such projects: 
 

(1) A “Group Development” shall be defined as a single building or multiple buildings 
housing multiple uses that share a common parking area. 
 

(2) For the purposes of site plan approval, including stormwater, parking, landscaping and 
common area/open space requirements, all associated properties will be treated as a 
single development. 
 

(3) When a Group Development is subdivided into multiple parcels, the following 
documents, in detail satisfactory to the Zoning Administrator, shall be required: 
 

a) A plan or agreement detailing how the shared parking will be maintained and 
preserved. 

b) A plan or agreement detailing how the landscaping for the development will be 
maintained. 

c) A common signage plan detailing the allotted signage for each individual use 
(existing and future) and a plan or agreement detailing how common signage at 
entrances will be addressed. 

d) A plan or agreement detailing how the stormwater system will be maintained and 
preserved. 

e) A plan or agreement detailing how any common area/open space will be 
maintained and preserved. 
 

(4) The Zoning Administrator may approve a reduction to the setback and bufferyard 
requirements to zero (0) feet and eliminate landscaping requirements on all internal 
property lines in the development. 

 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Mayor and Council 
 
From:  Rebecca Vance, City Manager  

    
 Date:  February 26, 2015  
 

Subject: Discussion and Approval of Hospitality Tax Funding Request for the 
Cayce Easter Eggstravaganza – Staff Request  

________________________________________________________________  
  

ISSUE   
 
Council discussion and approval is needed for the Staff’s Request to utilize 
Hospitality Tax Funds for the Cayce Easter Eggstravaganza. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
 
Cayce Staff is requesting to be allowed to utilize up to $1,500 of Hospitality Tax 
Funds for an Easter event on April 4, 2015.  The event would last from 10:00-
1:00 on Saturday at Granby Gardens Park.  There will be an Easter egg hunt, 
face painting, snacks and pictures with the Easter Bunny.  This will be a free 
event that is intended to bring children and their families into the City to celebrate 
Easter. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Hospitality Tax Fund Request. 

ITEM V. A. 



ITEM V. B. 









________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Mayor and Council  
 

 From:  Rebecca Vance, City Manager 
Tara Greenwood, Special Projects/Grants Coordinator 
  

Date:  February 27, 2015 
  

Subject: Bid Approval for landscape architect and civil engineering 
services for Guignard Park 

________________________________________________________________  
  

Issue 
 
Council approval is needed in order to accept the Request for 
Qualifications proposal from Landplan Group South for landscape 
architectural and civil engineering services for the Guignard Park 
Redevelopment Project, and to execute a contract between the City of 
Cayce and Landplan Group South  
 
 
Discussion 
 
The City of Cayce received funds from the Land Water Conservation Fund 
to redevelop Guignard Park. Professional landscape architectural and civil 
engineering services are needed for this project. A request for 
qualifications was placed in SCBO and on the City’s website. Six (6) firms 
responded. The selection committee individually ranked the firms that 
responded. After scores were tallied the firms are ranked as follows: 
 
1. Landplan Group South 
2. Michael Baker Jr. 
3. Grimbrall Cotterill 
4. Hybrid Engineering 
5. Ken Simmons 
6. Greener Habitats, Inc 
 
Firms were scored on the following criteria: 
 
1. Firm qualifications and experience on similar projects; 
2. Key staff qualifications and experience on similar projects;  
3. Input from client reference; 
4. Firm location, with preference to firms that are familiar with Cayce and 

locations that minimize travel time and costs; 

ITEM V. C. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 1 



5. Proposal completeness and organization;  
6. Project understanding, creativity, innovation;  
7. Project management approach; 
8. Schedule for completing services.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends Council accept the RFQ proposal from Landplan Group 
South, and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract. 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 2 



ITEM VII. A.





















 

Memorandum 
To:  Mayor and Council  

From:  Mendy Corder 

Date:  02/27/2015 

Re: Beautification Board’s Recommendation to Remove a Member due to 
Unexcused Absences  

Mr. Joshua Call was appointed to the Beautification Board December 3, 2013.  He has 
been absent from the last five (5) regularly scheduled meetings and has not returned 
phone calls or emails inquiring of his interest to remain on the Board.  In Article III Section 
2 - Attendance the Beautification Board’s Bylaws reads “The minutes shall show members 
in attendance at each meeting.  At the January 6, 1998 Council Meeting, Council 
established a policy requiring any member with three consecutive, unexcused absences to 
step down.  The Beautification Board may recommend to Mayor and Council the removal 
for cause of any member and may recommend individuals to be considered for open 
positions on the Committee.”    
 
The Beautification Board recommends that Council approve removing Mr. Joshua Call 
from the Board due to non-attendance.    
 

CONFIDENT IA L  

ITEM VII. B. 

  1 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

March 3, 2015 
 
 
All open positions will be advertised on the City’s website and Facebook page.  
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – ONE (1) POSITION  
We have received a potential member application from Mr. Hubert Smoak who would like to serve on 
the Foundation.  His application is attached for Council’s review.   
 
 
 
NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member 
applications. 
 
ACCOMMODATIONS TAX COMMITTEE – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Ms. Cherelle Davis is no longer employed with the Country Inn & Suites.  Ms. Sue Wofford is no longer 
with Knights Inn.  These positions must be filled by someone from the motel industry in Cayce.  The staff 
liaison is currently speaking with motel managers regarding this position.  
 
BEAUTIFICATION BOARD – ONE (1) POSITION  
Ms. Joanne Wilson resigned from the Board in January.  Her resignation letter is attached.  The Board 
has no recommendation at this time.    
   
CONSOLIDATED BOARD OF APPEALS – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
Mr. Ron Lawson’s term has expired.  We have been unable to reach Mr. Lawson by phone.  A letter has 
been sent to Mr. Lawson to inquire about his interest in serving on this Board.  No response to the City’s 
letter has been received.  Mr. Frank Strange and Mr. Lemuel Knight both passed away recently.  There 
are no recommendations at this time.     
 
EVENTS COMMITTEE – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Mr. Jay Thompson resigned from the Events Committee in September due to an increased workload.  
There is also another open position on the Committee since the membership increased from nine 
members to eleven.  There are no recommendations at this time.   
 
PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – FOUR (4) POSITIONS  
At the February 3, 2015 Council Meeting Council approved amendments to the Cayce Public Safety 
Foundation’s Bylaws.  In order to ensure that Council is able to recruit more directors to the Foundation, 
the Foundation Bylaws now read that Council may appoint directors from within the City at large and 
directors need not be from particular Council districts. 
 
 Also, the amended Bylaws state a quorum consists of the number of directors attending a meeting; 
provided, that in no event shall a quorum consist of fewer than two (2) directors.  Therefore any action 
needed can be taken at each meeting.       
 
  

 
ITEM VII. C. 






	Agenda
	Item I. B. - Council Minutes
	Item II. A - Proclamation March for Meals
	Item II. B. - Proclamation MS Week
	Item IV. A. - White Paper Group Development
	Item IV. A. - Ordinance Group Developments
	Item IV. A. - Group Development Supporting Documentation


	Item V. A. - White Paper Easter Egg Hunt
	Item V. B. - Festival of the Arts H Tax App
	Item V. C. - White Paper Guignard Park
	Item VII. A. - Committee Minutes
	Item VII. B. - Comm Member Removal Memo
	Item VII. C. - Supporting Documentation

